PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET

Survey #: P.G. #66-10 Building Date: 1896

Building Name: McDonnell House

Location: 7400 Dartmouth Avenue

Private/Residence/Occupied/Good/Inaccessible
Description

The McDonnell House is a large two and one-half story frame, gable
roof dwelling with a wrap-around entry porch. It stands on a high brick
foundation. It is Tocated on a large tree-shaded corner lot in 01d Town
College Park. The three bay east (main) facade fronts on Dartmouth Avenue.
The entry door, in the third bay, is surmounted by a rectangular transom.
The door surround has a wide lintel with a raised crown molding. The 1/1
double-hung sash windows have a similar surround. The first story is
sheltered by a hipped roof entrance porch which wraps around the south
side of the building. The McDonnell House is basically rectangular in
shape, with a projecting cross gable on the south and west sides. It is
covered with narrow lapped horizontal wood siding milled in sets of two
courses rather than only one. The boxed, crown molded cornice returns in
the gable ends. ATl of the upper gables are covered with fishscale
shingles and lighted by a centered window. The roof covering is slate.

Significance

The McDonnell House is significant for its simplified, late
nineteenth century adaptation of the Queen Anne style. Built in 1896, it
serves as a fine example of one of the early residences in College Park.
The house is also significant for its association with its first and
long-time resident, Dr. Henry B. McDonnell. McDonnell served as first Dean
of the School of Chemistry, 1919-1921, of the University of Maryland. The
McDonnell House was constructed in 1896 for the McDonnell family and Dr.
McDonnell resided there until his death in 1958. The interior is
essentially unaltered, retaining original plaster, light fixtures and
moldings. The house retains the decorative surface materials of the Queen
Anne style. The style is simplified however. The result is an imposing
house in a more modern suburban style than the traditional Queen Anne.
Simplification of late nineteenth century styles occurred as new suburban
housing was constructed in the last decade of the nineteenth century and
in the early decades of the twentieth century.

Acreage: 10,000 square feet
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Magi No.

DOE yes __no

1. Name

{indicate preferred name)

historic McDonnell House

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 7400 Dartmouth Avenue

— not for publication

city, town College Park ___ vicinity of congressional district 5
state Maryland county Prince George's
- - -
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district '—— public —X_ occupied ___ agriculture —___museum
X__ building(s) _~_ private —  unoccupied —_ commercial . park
— structure —_both — work in progress __educational _X__ private residence
____ site Public Acquisition Accessible —___ entertainment __religious
— object _ in process —__ yes: restricted — government —— scientific
__ being considered ——_ yes: unrestricted ____industrial —_ transportation
_x not applicable X _no ____ military —— other:

4. Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Robert H. Schnabel

street & number 7400 Dartmouth Avenue

telephone no.:

city, town College Park

state and zip code Maryland 20740

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber 5622

street & number Main Street folio 930

city, town Upper Marlboro state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing nistorical surveys

title Historic Sites and Districts Plan ‘

date July 1981 ___ftederal ___ state x_county —__local

depository for survey records

Historic Preservation Commission,

Room 4010, CAB

city, town Upper Ma rlboro

state

Maryland




7. Description

Survey NOP(Y : 66_10

Condition Check one Check one

—— excellent —— deteriorated __x_ unaitered — original site

—X good — fuing —— altered ——moved date of move
— fair — unexposed

-

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its

various elements as it exists today.

-

The McDonnell House is a large two and one-half story frame, gable
roof dwelling dating to 1896. It has a wrap-around entry porch and is set
on a high brick foundation. It is located on a large tree-shaded corner
lTot in 01d Town College Park.

The three bay east (main) facade fronts on Dartmouth Avenue. The
entry door, in the third bay, is surmounted by a rectangular transom. The
door surround has a wide lintel with a raised crown molding. The 1/1
double-hung sash windows have a similar surround. The first story is
sheltered by a hipped roof entrance porch which wraps around the south
side of the building. The porch has turned and chamfered posts. The
brackets, which have been removed while the porch is being repaired, are
simple curving arcs of wood. The porch rests on brick piers and is
reached by a flight of five concrete stairs. The east facade is
surmounted by a centered cross-gable covered with fishscale shingle. A
rectangular 1/1 sash window with a crown-molded lintel is centered in the
upper gable.

The McDonnell House is basically rectangular in shape, with a
projecting cross gable on the south and west sides. It is covered with
narrow lapped horizontal wood siding milled in sets of two courses rather
than only one. The boxed, crown molded cornice returns in the gable ends.
A1l of the upper gables are covered with fishscale shingles and lighted by
a centered window. The roof covering is slate.

The south elevation is irregularly massed. The two bay main block is
surmounted by a gable with a window centered at Toft level. The entry
porch shelters the first story, and stops upon intersecting a projecting
gable roof bay at the center of the facade. This projecting two story bay
is somewhat lower than the main block and has an oval window with a wide
surround centered at loft level. The kitchen wing projects to the west
(rear) of the dwelling and is two bays on the south side. In the ell
formed by the kitchen wing and the projecting south bay is a one story,
one bay infill which contains a small office. A brick chimney with a
corbelled cap projects from the roof of the kitchen wing, above the office.

The two bay west (rear) gable end is narrower than the main block. A
brick chimney rises from the gable ridge. A bulkhead cellar entrance is
beneath the first bay. A rear entry to the kitchen is through a shed roof
enclosed porch on the north side of the wing.
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The three-bay north elevation is surmounted by a broad gable. The
facade is irregularly fenestrated, with windows unevenly spaced. There is
a rectangular window centered in the gable at loft level. The one-bay -
north elevation of the kitchen wing is insert from the north facade by
approximately four feet. A large 2/2 sash window with louvered shutters
is on the north wall of the enclosed shed roof rear porch.

The interior of the McDonnell House has an irregular plan. The north
side stairhall is short and wide, forming a room rather than a hall. It
is flanked to the left or south by a parlor. There is a second parlor and
a dining room at the center of the house and a kitchen, pantry and small
office at the back of the house.

The entry door has three horizontal lower panels and an upper large
rectangular glazed pane. It is surmounted by a rectangular transom. The
door is of dark varnished wood as are the doors and moldings throughout
the house. The elaborately molded surround has an inner bead, a center
ogee and an outer rectangular backband. The Tlintel has a wide plain
frieze and a crown molded cornice.

The closed string stair rises along the north wall of the stairhall,
turns 90" at a small square landing and rises along the west wall to the
second story. The second run of the stair is enclosed. The balusters are
turned with rectangular blocks at the upper and lower ends. The
rectangular newel post has inset panels with bead molding. It is set on a
high base, and there is a dentilled band beneath the flat, overhanging cap.
The spandrel is paneled with narrow vertical board wainscot. The
baseboard throughout the first story is approximately ten inches wide,
with an elaborate cap having two half-round moldings.

~ The flooring throughout the interior is of narrow regular width
boards. The plaster is original as are the light fixtures in the
stairhall and the principal first floor rooms.

A large rectangular opening with pocket doors in the south wall of
the stairhall leads to the front parlor. A door at the west end of the
hall enters the dining room.

The dining room measures 17 x 17 feet as do the other two principal
rooms on the first story. There is a built-in china closet in the west
wall of the room, which double leaded glass doors. The closet has the
same surround and lintel as doors throughout the house. Pocket doors in
the south wall of the room lead to the southwest parlor. A mantel on the
west wall of the parlor is the only hearth in the house. The original
mantel has been replaced by a brick surround. In the west wall, south of
the hearth is an entry to a small room, measuring approximately 6 x 8
feet, which served as an office for the first resident of the house,
Professor Henry B. McDonnell. It is lighted by a small 1/1 sash window.
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In the southwest corner of the dining room is an entry to a back
hallway, containing the door to the basement stair, an enclosed back stair
to the second story and pantry shelving. Access to the kitchen is via -
this back hallway. :

The second floor of the house has a central hall running east-west,
with five bedrooms opening off of it. Wood moldings and doors are the
same as those on the first story, except that the doors are surmounted by
transoms. The doors have the original butt hinges with Victorian floral
designs. At the west end of the hall is an entry to the enclosed rear
stair and an adjoining entry to the attic stair. The door to the attic is
narrow with a wooden handle, three lower wood panels and an upper glazed
panel. An original bathroom is at the west end of the hall. It has
vertical board wainscotting surmounted by a chair rail, a wooden floor, a
bathtub with ball-and-claw feet and an original furnace vent with an iron
grill.

A shed roof frame chicken coop that was converted to a small studio
stands at the northwest corner of the lot. At the southwest corner of the
lot is a two story frame gable roof stable covered with horizontal lapped
wood siding. The windows are 2/2 sash. A one story lean-to covers the
east gable end of this building. The south side has two large double
doors of vertical boards.

There is a specimen shag bark hickory on the south lot line and a

large English walnut at the center of the rear yard. A line of three
cedar trees follows the west (rear) lot line.



8. Significance Survey No.{G ' 66-10

i t Significance—Check and justify below '
:._" :fehistoric ir_:‘:rc?\eolggy-prehistoric —— community planning . landscape architecture ____ :l‘ieg:‘z:
——1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation —_law — science |
—— 1500-1599 ___ agricuiture — economics — literature —_ soci:I/

1600~1699 _X_ architecture X_ education — military —— soctall
_ 1700-1799 ___ art —— engineering - mqsic A : :e ool
—x 1800-1899 _ commerce — exploration/settlement ___ phllosophy _ e tation
— 1900~ — communications — industry —— politics/government _ portatl
T — invention — other (specify
Specific dates Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: _A _B _C _D
and/or ,
Applicable Exception: _ A _B _C _D _E _F _G

Level of Significance: _national »_state __local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The McDonnell House is significant for its simplified, late )
nineteenth century adaptation of the Queen Anne style. Built in 1896, it
serves as a fine example of one of the early residences in College Park.

The house is also significant for its association with its first and
long-time resident, Dr. Henry B. McDonnell. McDonnel] served as first Dean
of the School of Chemistry, 1919-1921, of the University of Maryland.

Henry B. McDonnell graduated in 1886 from Pennsylvania State College
with a degree in Chemistry and Physics. He received a medicil degree from
the College of Physicians and Surgeons in Baltimore in 1888.1 He
maintained a small medical practice sporadically over his career.2
McDonnell was appointed Professor of Chemistry at the Maryland
Agricultural College (University of Marg]and) in 1891. He assumed charge
of the Department of Chemistry in 1892.3 McDonnel] stayed at the
University throughout his career, retiring in 1938. He also served as the
Maryland State Chemist. He was prominent in the local community,
assisting in the founding of the College Park Fire Department in 1925 and
serving as the Fire Chief from 1926 through 1933.4

The McDonnell House was constructed in 1896 for the McDonnell family
and Dr. McDonnell resided there until his death in 1958. The interior is
essentially unaltered, retaining original plaster, light fixtures and
moldings. Heavy carved chestnut architraves frame the doors and windows,
and the same wood was used for the main stairway. The house retains the
steeply pitched irregular roof shape, large size, facade-wide porch
wrapping around one side wall, and decorative surface materials of the
Queen Anne style. The style is simplified however, with the house having
a primarily rectangular shape and the variation of surface treatment
Timited to horizontal lapped wood siding with fishscale shingles in the
upper gables; and a slated-covered roof. The broad porch had turned posts
with very plain arched brackets. The result is an imposing house in a
more modern suburban style than the traditional Queen Anne. Simplifica-
tion of late nineteenth century styles occurred as new suburban housing
was constructed in the last decade of the nineteenth century and in the
early decades of the twentieth century.
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Notes

1 Reveille, Maryland Agricultural College, 1908, Student Yearbook, -
dedicated to Dr. H. B. McDonnell.

2 Interview with Fred DeMarr, June 1988.
3 Reveille.
4 7. Raymond Burch, History and Development of the City of College Park,

Berwyn Heights, Greenbelt and Adjacent Areas, City of College Park,
Maryland, 1970.
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11. Form Prepared By

Reséarch/
name/title Marina King, Architectual Historian, Susan Pearl, Architectual Historian
organization Historic Preservation Commission date June 1988
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
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record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
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Deed

JWB#13:297

27 June 1889

Deed

CHAIN OF TITIE
McDONNELL HOUSE
P.G. #66-10

Miriam licDonnell Holmes to Ilargaret
Hagan, a life estate (and after death of
11, Hagan, to Hobert & Billie Schnsbel)
lots 10, 11 and 12, block 10, College Park

Genevieve Huiess +to I[firiam licDonnell
Holmes, lot$s 9-12, block 10

- et al A .
BEthel IlcDonnell to Genevieve Huiess,

(parties of the first part being heirs at
law and nexi of kin of Henry Barmeti lic=-
Donnell), lots 9-12, block 10, Johnscn

& Curriden's subdividion of College Park

George I, Walker +to Henry B, licDonnell,
lots 11 & 12, block 10,

S. Herbert Giesy to George N. Walker,
lots 11 & 12, block 10

John Johnson to S, Herbert Giesy,
lots 11 & 12, block 10

Zlla & Duncan -Czmpbell to Johnson &
Curriden, 129 acras, allottment =5 cavised
to 21la out of her father's (C.BE. Calveri)
Riversdale estate
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P.G. County Survey : 66=%/C Date 18%

Building Nare McDonnell House

Location 7400 Dartmouth Avenue, College Park, Md.

Open to Public yes X no

The McDonnell house is a large two-and-one-half szory frame house,
The main (east) facade is three bays wide, with transcmed entrance in
the third bay; the central cross gable above has “ish scale shingling.

A one-story porch spans the east facade, then turns ari shelters part
of the aoutl-b facade, There are lower cross gables at north and south;
the boxed cornices are returned at the gable ends., V%indows in the
house are 1/1, and on the east facade have plain wooden lintels with
fascia and crown molding.

The interior is essentially unaltered. Heavy zarzed chestnut
architraves frame the doors and windows, and tne saze wood forms a
handsome staircase. .

Standing to the west on the oversized lot is & frame cariiage house.

This house was built in 1896 by Henry B, McDonrell, professor of
chemistry at the University of Maryland, who becane iiz Zirst Dean of
Arts and Sciences., In building this house, McDonnell abandoned the
varied decorative features of the Queen Anne Btyle znd reverted to a
simpler spacious farmhouse concept, while still employing some late
Victorian elements (e.g., fish scale shingles). Ihis nouse reportedly
had the first plumbing in College Park. McDonnell lived in this house
until his death in 1958. Hise house serves as a fine example of one
of the early residences in College Park, ™

Priv/oec/res/good AL
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